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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Blackwood Developers Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the financial statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Blackwood Developers Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive loss), the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its
profit, total comprehensive profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statement in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements”
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics

. issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial
statements.

Other Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors’ report but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Director’s report is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
xpress any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive loss, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Continuation sheet...
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Continuation sheet...
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Loss,
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to financial statements of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended we report that no remuneration
has been paid by the company to its directors during the year.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 39 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2022.

Continuation sheet..,
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iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 46(vii) to the financial
statements);

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the Company
from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 46(vii) to the financial statements); and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 101720W/W100355

(L}W NN

Jignesh Mehta

Partner

Membership Number: 102749
UDIN:22102749AJYXPS3166

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 21, 2022

Continuation sheet...
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our Report of even date to the members of Blackwood Developers Private Limited on the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

i. (a) (A)The Company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
Assets

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment of the Company have been physically verified by the
Management during the year, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size
of the Company and nature of its assets. and no material discrepancies have been noticed on
such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), as disclosed in
Note 7 to the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Consequently, the question of our
commenting on whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or
specifying the amount of change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net
carrying value of each class of Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or intangible assets does not arise.

(e) Based on the representation by the management and the information and explanations
furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company
for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and Rules made thereunder.

ii.(@) The Company is in the business of rendering services and, consequently, does not hold any
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate from banks on the basis of security of current assets. However, the
Company is not obligated to file the quarterly returns or statements.

iii. The Company has not made any investments, granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances in
nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any parties. Therefore, the
reporting under clause 3 (iii)(a), (iii)(b),(iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(e) and (iii)(f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

Continuation sheet...
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The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees
or security to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186. Therefore, the reporting under
clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules
framed there under to the extent notified.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues, including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, sales tax, income tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess goods and services tax and
other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

(b) According to the records of the Company, the dues of Service tax, and Income Tax which

have not been deposited on 315 March, 2022 on account of any dispute, are as follows:.

(X in Lakhs)

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount Period to | Forum where
statue Dues which dispute is pending

amount

relates
Income  Tax | Penalty Ul/s 14.92 AY 13-14 | Commissioner of
Act, 1961 271(1)(c) Income Tax

(Appeals) - Delhi.

According to the representation by the management and the information and explanations
given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, there is no income surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

(a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender as at the balance sheet date.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or any government authority.

Continuation sheet...
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(¢) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the company has not obtained any term loans during the year.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report
that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

x. (a)The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has made private placement of Optionally Convertible Debentures during the year and have
complied with the requirement of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the amounts
so raised have been used for the purposes for which these were raised. Company has not
raised any funds by issue of securities on preferential basis under section 62 of the Act.

xi. (&) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of
the Act has been filed by auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the
date of this report.. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, and as represented to us by the management, no
whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Continuation sheet...
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As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it,
the reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24
“Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is
not required to constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act and, accordingly,
to this extent, the reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(2) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of
it’s holding company, subsidiary company, associate company or persons connected with
such directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during
the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company,
the Group does not have any CICs which are part of the Group as per the definition of
Group contained in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion, and according the information and explanation provided to us, Company has
not incurred any cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial
year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause (xviii) is not applicable.

cﬁ? / Continuation sheet...



Xix.

XX,

CHATURVEDI [ SHAH ..

Chartered Accountants

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act is not applicable to the Company and
accordingly the reporting under clause 3(xx) (a) and 3 (xx) (b) are not applicable to the
Company.

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 101720W/W100355

Q\mﬁwx}a

Jignesh Mehta

Partner . QQ_.,&E_D'I & Sk

Membership Number: 102749 /< SN\
. L | 5

UDIN:22102749AJYXPS3166 (S MUMBAI 'ﬂ

*

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 21, 2022
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date to the members of Blackwood Developers Private Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Blackwood Developers Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note™) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing
deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to financial statements
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting with reference to financial
statements

A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Continuation sheet...
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Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over

financial reporting with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls

over financial reporting with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at

March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
- on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by ICAL

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 101720W/W100355

[\f -\-\,\\,LLJL \.}1_!“

Jignesh Mehta

Partner

Membership Number: 102749
UDIN:22102749AJYXPS3166

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 21, 2022
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Blackwood Developers Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars Note no. As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
(Refer Note.45) (Refer Note.45)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Properiy, plant and equipment 6 115747 1.506.41 1.847.90
Investment Property . 7 10.974.32 11.130.01 11.285.72
Other Intangible assets 8 0.19 0.42 0.62
Financial assets
Loans 9 - - -
Other Financial Asscts 10 8.47 - 5.51
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 1 11244 - -
Other non-current assets 12 78.14 7851 71.65
12,331.03 12,715.35 13,211.39
Current assets
Financial assets
Trade Reccivables 13 9G7.71 1.234.81 627.72
Cash and cash equivalents 14 831.63 18.62 50.64
Loans - - 600.00
Other financial asscts 15 435.71 426.32 430.53
Current Tax Assets (Net) 16 154.32 182.54 592.92
Other current assets 17 45.18 53.17 39.13
2.434.55 1.915.46 2.360.94
Total Assets 14.765.58 14.630.81 15,572.33
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equitv Share capital 18 1.873.17 1.873.17 1.873.17
Other cquity 19 3.869.76 242423 2.573.39
5.742.93 4,297.40 4.446.56
Liabilities . a
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 20 6.720.98 7.757.84 8.312.99
Other Finarcial Liabilides 21 33.93 117.04 186.58
Provisions 22 13.22 8.17 7.16
Other Non Current Liabilities 23 438 13.97
6.772.51 7,897.01 8,506.73
Current liabilities
Financial habilities
Borrowines 24 1.007.49 986.13 1.239.48
Trade Pavables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprses and small 2.93 170 1.52
enterprises 25
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 121.82 62.79 29.61
enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 26 972,46 1.144.01 1.073.51
Other current liabilities 27 144.08 240.96 27415
Provisious 28 1.36 0.81 0.77
2.250.14 2.436.40 2.619.04
Total Equitv & Liabilities 14.765.58 14.630.81 15.572.33
Sec accompanying Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on 11049

[financial statemenr
As per our Report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registeation No: 101720W/W100355

\P

Jignesh Mehta
Partner
ANemebership No.: 102749

Place : Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

e L2 R

Prashant Khandelwal
Director
DIN. 08067106

Shobit Saxena
CFO

|
Lalit s.\m

Dircctor
DIN.08715049

Aaradbana Fulwani
Company Sceretary
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Blackwood Developers Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March,2022

Place : Mumbai
Date : 21st May,2022

=—— CFO
PAN No.BMOPS0882H

(R in Lakhs)
. For the year ended | For the year ended
P ul
i ot 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
INCOME . |
Revenue from operations 29 2,954.68 2,311.94
Other income 30 23.99 67.72
Total Income 2,978.67 2,379.66
|Expenses
Emplovee benefit expense 31 117.43 102.20
Finance cost 32 747.29 941.11
Depreciation and amortisation expense 6 507.20 503.32
Other expense 33 1,264.30 914.84
Total Expenses 2.636.22 2.461.47
Profit/ (loss) before tax 342.45 (81.81)
Tax Expense
Current Tax 34 61.45 2.50
Deferred Tax 34 (112.34) =
Short/ (Excess) Provision of Income Tax for earlier year 34 (2.47) 65.07
Profit/(Loss) for the year (A) 395.81 (149.38)
Other comprehensive income (B) .
Items that will not b ified Profit & Loss A/c
Remeasurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plans (0.38) 0.22
Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclasified to Profit & Loss A/c 0.10 -
Total comprehensive income for the year (A + B) 395.53 (149.15)
Earnings per equity share (In ) (Face Value of T10/- each)
a) Basic 38 2.1 (0.80)
b) Diluted 38 0.13 (0.80)
See accompanying Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial 1 to 49
statement
As per our Report of even date
For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101720W/W100355 14
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LA CEW! DEVELOPERS PRIV z ED
g ow Sp nent For The Year e ch, 2022
{% in Lakhs)

For the year | For the year
Particulars ended 31st ended 31st
March 2022 March 2021

A. |CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ;

Nt Profit/ (loss}Before Tax as per Profit and Loss Account . 34245 (81.81)
Adjustment For :

Diepreciation and amortisation expenses 307.20 503.32
Allenwances for expected credit loss 27.06 95.78
Interest expense for financial habilitics at amortised cost 73271 941.11
Interest Income for financial asset at amortised cost (23.98) (67.72)
Equalisation License Fees 1746 -
Rentil Income (Unwinding) 0.73 -
Operating Profit/ (Loss) Before Working Capital Changes 1,603.62 1,390.68
Adjustment For Working Capital Changes :

Ttade Recervables 240,05 (F237)
Other Receivable 20,414 (178.77)
Trade Pavables & Others Pavable (282.12) 13.20
Cash generated from Operations (68.48) (685.96)
Iess: Taxes (Paid)/Refund received dunng the vear {23.95) 301.06
Net cash generated from / (used in) Operating Activities (A) 131120 L065.78

B. [CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Purchase of Property Plant & Equipment {2.80) (13.360)
Inter Corporate Deposits & Loans (placed)/ refunded (Net) - 600,00
[epnsits placed with Banks other than considered in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1.41)

Interest Received 7 30.63

Net cash generated from / (used in) Investing Activities (B) 644,27

C. |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
NMovement in Short Term Borrowings (Netb) {103,001y (699.67)
(Repayment) of Long Term Borrowings (922,50 (118.83)
lssued of Optionally Fully Convertible Debenture 1.050.00 -
Intecest Paid (73624 (92357}
Met cash penerated from / (used in) Fmancing Activities (C) (7T11.75) {1.742.07)
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalent (A}+{B)+{ C 1} 813.01 {32412)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the Year 18.62 30,64
Cash and Cash Eguivalents ar the end of the Year (Refer Note No.ld) 83163 18.62
Notes to Cash Flow

1 Components of cash and cash cquivalents :
Cash on hand - o2
Balance with Scheduled Bank 831.63 18.60
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the vear (Refer Note no. 14) 831.63 18.62

2 Change in Liability arising from financing activities 01st April 2021  Cash Flow Processing Fees 31st March 2022
Borrowingzs - Non Current* (Refer Note No,20) 8.640.97 (922,500 10.00 7.72847
Borrowings - Current (Refer Note No.24} 103.00 {103.000 - -
Change in Liability arising from financing activities 01st April 2020  Cash Flow Processing Fees 31st March 2021
Borrowines - Non Current® (Refer Note No,20) 8,749.80 (118.83) 10.00 8.640.97
Borrowines - Current (Refer Note No.2H) 802.67 (699.67) - 103.00
* It includes Current maturity of Long Term Borrowinges which is classified under short term borrowings.
See accompanying Sienificant Accountingr Policies and Notes on Financial statement 1to 49
As per our Report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Figm Regmstration No: 1017208 /\W100355

At e

Jimiesh Mehta Prashant Khandelwal Lalit Jain
Pactnet Director Dircector
hemebershin No.: 102749 DIN. 08067106 DIN.O8715049

—
Plage : Mumba Shobit Saxena Aaradhana Fulwani
Date @ 21st Mav 2022 CFO Company Sceretany
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(b)

Bluckwood Developers Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the vear ended 31st March,2022

Equity share capital

For the vear ended 31st March, 2022 (¥ in Lalkhs)

Changes in Equity | Restated balance at . .

. L Changes in equity
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 Share F:apltal. due |the beg & o.f the share capital during S
. to prior period current reporting 31st March, 2021
i the year
€rTorS period
1.873.17 - 1.873.17 - 1.873.17

For the vear ended 31st March, 2021

Changes in Equity | Restated balance at . .

. A Changes in equity
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 Share Fapltall due | the beginning o‘f the share capital during Balance g2t
to prior period current reporting the vear 31st March, 2021
€rrors period B
1.873.17 - 1.873.17 - 1.873.17
Other equity
(¥ in Lakhs)
Reserves & Surplus

Instrument Securities Premium | Retained Earning |Other Total

Particulars classified as Equity Reserves Comprehensive
Income

Balance as at 1st April 2020 1,120.00 1,856.00 (415.40) 12.78 2,573.39
Profit / (Loss) For the Year - - (149.38) - (149.38)
Re-measurement of the net Defined Benefie Plans - - - 0.22 0.22
Balance as at 31st March 2021 1,120.00 1,856.00 (564.78) 13.00 2,424.23,
Profit / (Loss) For the Year - 395.81 - 395.81
Issue of Optionally Convertible Debentures 1,050.00 - = 1,050.00
Re-measurement of the net Defined Benefit Plans(Net)* - - - (0.28) (0.28)
Balance as at 31st March 2022 2,170.00 1,856.00 (168.97) 12.72 3,869.76
* Net of Tax
Sec accompanying Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Finar 1t049

As per our Report of even date

For Chaturvedi & Shah LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101720W /W100355

Tignesh Mehta
Partner
Memebership No.:102749

Ynterse

Place : Murmbai
Date : 21st May,2022

For and on WM of Directors Y
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Director
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CFO

Prashant Khandelwal
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BLACKWOOD DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended 315t March 2022

1. Corporate Information:
The Company is a limited company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at Ground floor, R.R.
Hosiery Building, off Dr. Annie Besant Road, Mahalaxmi (W), Mumbai —400011.
The Company is mainly engaged in real estate activities and construction of commercial premises. The
principle place of business is located at Phoenix United Mall, Pilibhit By Pass Road, Biharman Nagla,

Bareilly, Uttar Pradesh. For Company’s principal shareholders, refer note no.18

These financial statements were approved and adopted by board of directors of the Company in their
meeting dated 21** May, 2022.

2. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statement:

The Financial Statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

The significant accounting policies used in preparing financial statements are set out below in Note 3 of
the Notes to Financial Statements and are applied consistently to all the periods presented.

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

a) Functional and presentation of currency:

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company’s functional
currency and all amounts are rounded to the nearest rupees in Lakhs.

b) Basis of measurement:

The Financial Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except the following:

e Certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value.
e Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value.

c) Use of Estimates :

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates, judgements
and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent
liabilities as on the date of financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses
during the period. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods.




d)

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are described in Notes No. 3. The Company
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Such
cost includes borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives as specified by Schedule Il to the Companies Act; 2013.
The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets’ residual
values and useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Particulars Estimated useful life (in years)
Plant and Equipment 15 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years
Computers 3 to 6 Years
Furniture and Fixture 10 Years
D/ehicles 8 Years

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These
are included in profit or loss. i
p, W O_O 0 -




f)

Intangible asset:

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset&, it is probable
that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the
asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets acquired are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Amortisation methods and periods

Estimated useful lives of Intangible assets are considered as 5 years. Intangible assets are amortised
over its useful life using the straight-line method. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied
in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with
finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Investment Property:

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
property under construction for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured in accordance with Ind AS 16's requirements for cost model. The cost of Investment
property includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long term construction projects
if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful
lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as
incurred.

Investment properties are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.Depreciation on investment properties is provided on the
straight-line method over the useful lives of the assets as follows:

Asset Category Estimated Useful Life( in
Years)
Buildings 60

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the
sal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in Statement of Profit and

—

e period in which the property is derecognised. ////\:\\’0062\
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g)

g)

h)

Impairment of Non — Financial Asset:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or Cash Generating Unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or a groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down
to its recoverable amount.

In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and at bank, deposits held at call with banks and
other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Foreign currency transactions:

The transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on
the date of transaction. Monetary items denominated in foreign currency at the end of year are
translated using the closing rate of exchange. Non- monetary items that are to be carried at
historical cost are recorded using exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Non-
monetary items that are to be carried at fair value are recorded using exchange rate prevailing on
the date of fair value measured. Any income or expenses on account of exchange difference either
on settlement or on translation is recognised in the statement of profit and loss account.

Financial Instrument:

A financial instrument is any contract that givesrise toa financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instruments of another entity. Classifications of financial instruments are in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and as per the definitions of
financial assets, financial liability and an equity instruments. s
' 00D pY




Financial Assets and investments

i) Initial recognition and measurement:

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset (other than financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss) at its fair value plus or minus, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the statement of profit & loss.

i) Subsequent recognition and measurement:

Subsequent measurement of financial asset depends on the company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. For the purpose of subsequent
recognition and measurement financial assets are classified in four categories:

e Debt instrument at amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method

e Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOQl):

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses and interest revenue
which are recognised in the statement of profit & loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in
other income using the effective interest rate method.

e Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL):

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCl are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the statement of
profit & loss and presented net in the statement of profit & loss within other gains/(losses) in the
period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

¢ Equity instruments:
All equity instruments are initially measured at fair value. Any subsequent fair value gain /loss is

recognised through profit or loss if such investments are held for trading purposes. The fair value
ains or losses of all other equity securities are recognised in Other Comprehensive income.

/21000 2\



iii)

De-recognition:

A financial asset is primarily derecognised i.e. removed from Company’s financial statement when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from asset have expired or

e The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
‘pass- through’ arrangement and either;

a) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets,
b) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rigHts to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the company could be required to repay.

Financial Liabilities:

i) initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts.

ii) Subsequent measurement:

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
has designated upon initial measurement recognition at fair value through profit or loss.Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company
esignated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.




Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit & loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

iii) Financial Liabilities at amortised cost:

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in
statement of profit & loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the

statement of profit and loss.

(iv) De -recognition:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

j) Impairment of Financial asset:

The company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model to the following:

e Financial assets carried at amortised cost;
e Financial asset measured at FVOC! debt instruments.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on its trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected
life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial

recogniti redit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impaj i&ﬂ[&% wever, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is-used. If, in a
¢ 000 5\




subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognise
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an
analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely
basis.

k) Classification of assets and liabilities as current and non — current:

The Company presents assets and liabilities in Balance Sheet based on current/non-current
classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d)  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when:

a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

b)  Itisheld primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d)  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash or cash equivalents.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Equity share capital:

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs net of taxes directly attributable to the
issue of new equity shares are reduced from retained earnings, net of taxes.

Revenue Recognition:

The copprrasesevente from contracts with customers is mainly from License Fees and Other
j the customers in Malls. 70D X




Revenue from license fees and other operating services

Revenue from license fees are recognised on a straight line basis over the license terms, Revenue

from license fees and other operating services is recognized on satisfaction of performance

obligation upon transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that reflects the

consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those services, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties (for example taxes and duties collected on behalf of the
government). Consideration is generally due upon satisfaction of performance obligations and a

receivable is recognized when it becomes unconditional. Generally, the credit period varies between

0-30 days from the delivery of services.

i)

ii)

Interest income

Interest income from debt instrument is recognised using effective interest rate method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of financial asset to the gross carrying amount of financial asset. When calculating effective
interest rate, the company expects cash flows by considering all contractual terms of financial
instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Contract Assets

A contract asset(Trade receivable) is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services
transferred to the customer. If the Company performs part of its obligation by transferring goods or
services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract
asset is recognised for the earned consideration when that right is conditional on the Company’s
future performance.

Employees benefits:

Short-term Employee benefits:

All employees’ benefits payable wholly within 12 months rendering services are classified as Short
Term obligations. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short term compensated absences,
performance incentives, expected cost of bonus and ex-gratia are recognised during the period in
which the employees renders related services.

Post-employment benefits

a. Defined Contribution Plan

The defined contribution plan is post-employment benefit plan under which the Company
contributes fixed contribution to a government administered fund and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contribution. The Company’s defined contribution plan
comprises of Provident Fund, Labour Welfare Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme.

The Co T;a n{ribution to defined contribution plans are recognised in the statement of
profi 1IS%k’;‘iod in which the employee renders the related services.—_ y
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o)

i)

b. Defined benefit plan

The Company has defined benefit plans comprising of gratuity. Company’s obligation towards
gratuity liability is funded and is managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). The
present value of the defined benefit obligations is determined based on actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit method. The rate used to discount defined benefit obligation
is determined by reference to market yields at the Balance Sheet date on Indian Government
Bonds for the estimated term of obligations.

Re-measurements comprising of (a) actuarial gains and losses, (b) the effect of the asset
ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) and (c)
the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability) are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit
or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit & loss in
subsequent periods.

The expected return on plan assets is the Company’s expectation of average long-term rate
of return on the investment of the fund over the entire life of the related obligation. Plan
assets are measured at fair value as at the Balance Sheet date.

The interest cost on defined benefit obligation and expected return on plan assets is
recognised under employee benefit expense.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of defined benefit plan are recognised when
the curtailment or settlement occurs.

Other long-term benefits

The Company has other long-term benefits in the form of leave benefits. The present value of the
other long term employee benefits is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method. The rate used to discount defined benefit obligation is determined by
reference to market yields at the Balance Sheet date on Indian Government Bonds for the
estimated term of obligations.

Actuarial gains or losses arising on account of experience adjustment and the effect of changes
in actuarial assumptions are recognised immediately in the statement of profit & loss as income
or expense.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of other long-term benefits are recognised when
the curtailment or settlement occurs.

Borrowing Cost:

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.




p)

q)

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for such
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that are incurred in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Provisions and contingencies:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using the
government securities interest rate for the equivalent period. Unwinding of the discount is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent liability
is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent assets are not recognised.
However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a
contingent asset, but it is recognised as an asset.

Income Taxes:

Current Income Tax:

Current Income Tax liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation
authorities using the tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or subsequently enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and creates
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tox:

Deferred Tax is provided, using the liability method, on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred
Income Tax is determined using the tax rates and tax laws that are enacted or subsequently enacted
at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred Tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised: for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those




Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when thereisa legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax asset and liabilities are offset where the company has a legally enforceable
right and intends either to settle on net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

As at the year end, the Company has recognized the deferred tax assets to the extent of Deferred
Tax Liabilities and balance Deferred Tax Assets has not given effectin the Balance sheet as on March
31, 2022 on a conservative approach.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit & loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India,
to the extent it would be available for set off against future current income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT
is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it
is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.

r)  Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (after tax) for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (after tax) for the year
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

4. Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements:

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates, judgements
and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent
liabilities as on the date of financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during
the period. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year. The Company based its assumptions and estimates
on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions- about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are.reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following

estimates and judgements, which have significant effect on the amounts recognized: in the financial
) . /), ™,

statement:




()

Depreciation and useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after
taking into account their estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives
and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation to be
recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the
Company’s historical experience with similar assets and take into account anticipated technological
changes. The depreciation for future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

(b) Recoverability of trade receivable

(e)

(f)

(g)

Judgments are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining
whether a provision against those receivables is required. The Company uses a provision matrix to
determine impairment loss allowance on its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for
forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed.

Defined Benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of
such obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rate. Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

Provisions:

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a
future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can
be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the
application of judgement to existing facts and circumnstances, which can be subject to change. Since
the cash outflows can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions and
liabilities are reviewed regularly and adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

Impairment of financial assets:

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected cash loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Fair Value measurement:

When the fair values of financials assets;and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot
be measured based on guoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation

T,




techniques, including the discounted cash flow model, which involve various judgements and
assumptions.

5. Standards Issued but not Effective:

On March 23, 2022, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Companies (Indian Accounting
standards) Amendment Rule, 2022. This notification has resulted into amendments in the following
existing accounting standards which are applicable to the company from April 1% 2022.

i. Ind AS 101 — First time adoption of Ind AS

ii. Ind AS 103 — Business Combination

iii. Ind AS 109 — Financial Instrument

iv. Ind AS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment

v. Ind AS 37 —Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
vi. Ind AS 41 — Agriculture

Application of the above standards are not expected to have have any significant impact on the
company’s financial statements.
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Blackwood Developers Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022

Note 7:Investment Property

(® in Lakhs)
Particulars Land Building Total
Gross Cartying Amount
Balance as at 1st April 2020 2,828.34 9,640.35 12,468.69
Additions s - -
Deletions - - -
Balance as at 31st March 2021 2,828.34 9,640.35 12,468.69
Additions - - -
Deletions - 2 -
Balance as at 31st March 2022 2,828.34 9,640.35 12,468.69
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1st April 2020 - 1,182.98 1,182.98
Depreciation during the year - 155.69 155.69
Deletions - & =
Balance as at 31st March 2021 - 1,338.68 1,338.68
Depreciation during the year - 155.69 155.69
Deletions - - -
Balance as at 31st March 2022 - 1,494.37 1,494.37
Net Carrying Amount
Balance as at March 2021 2,828.34 8,301.68 11,130.01
Balance as at March 2022 2,828.34 8,145.98 10,974.32

1. The Company’s investment properties consists of mall in Bareily known as Phoenix United Mall, Pilibhit by Pass Road, Near Mahanagar,
Bareillv. Uttar Pardesh-243122.
ii.As at 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021, the fair values of the properties (excluding Right to use assets) are * Rs. 35030.00 Lakhs and

" Rs: 32,550.00 Lakhs respectively. Valuations as at 31st March 2022 are based on valuations performed by IVAS, tegister independent
valuer. A valuation model in accordance with that recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee has been applied.
Valuation as at 31st March 2021 are as certified by the Management .

Investment property with carrying amount of Rs. 10,974.00 lakhs (31st March, 2021 Rs.11,130 Lakhs) have been pledged to secure
borrowings of the Company (See Note 20 & 24) by way of mortgage.

ifi. The fair value of the Company's investment properties have been arrived at using discounted cash flow method. Under
discounted cash flow method, cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of cash flow are discounted. The main inputs

used are rental growth rate, expected vacancy rates, terminal yields and discount rates which are based on comparable

transactions and industry data.

Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss related to investment properties (excluding finance cost)

(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2022 | 31st March, 2021
Rental income from investment properties 1.932.71 1.454.19
Direct opetating expenses atising from investment property that
generated rental income during
the year 75.35 105.06
Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation 1.857.36 1.349.13
e —— B
Less: Depreciation 155.69 155.69
Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation 1.701.67 1.193.43
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Blaﬁ:kwoorl Developers Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022

X in Lakhs)
Note No. |Particulars As ac 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2022 2021
9 LOANS RECEIVABLE (U NSECURED)
Credit Impaired
Loans and advances with Others 20.00 20.00
'Less:- Allowances on Loans (20.00) (20.00)
10 Other Non Current Financial Assets
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity* 6.06 e
License Fees Equalisation Asset 241 -
8.47 -
*Fixed Deposit of X 5.00 lakhs (P.Y. Nil) is given as security for Bank gurantee
1 Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability) (Net)
At Beginning of the year
Change/(Credit) to Profit or Loss 112.34 -
Change to Other Comprehensive Income 0.10 =
At the end of the year 112.44 -
Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) in relation to
Property,Plant and Equipement 16.20 =
Expenses allowable on payment basis 3.79 =
Provision for loss allowance 92.46 =
Total 112.44 =
12 Other Non-Current Assets
Unsecured & Considered Good
Prepaid Expenses 0.96 1.80
Capital Advance 8.18 7.71
Sccurity Deposits 69.00 69.00
78.14 78.51
13 Trade Receivables
[Unsecured)]
a) Considered good 657.26 521.14
Less: Allowances for expected credit loss (24.52) (5.89)
632.75 515.25
b) Significant increase in credit risk 304.21 580.39
Less: Allowances for expected credit loss (198.69) (114.86)
105.52 465.53
¢) Credit impaired 128.60 259.31
Less: Allowances for expected credit loss (112.39) (187.79)
16.21 71.51
Total (A) 754.48 1,052.30
Unbilled Trade Receivables (B) 213.22 182.52
Total (A+B) 967.71 1,234.81




[Blackwood Developers Private Limited
INotes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022

(& in Lakhs)
Note No. |Particulars As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2022 2021
Trade Receivables ageing as of 31st March 2022
Particul o ding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 6 months - 1 year 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 Total
months years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 553.32 60.80 28.97 14.12 .05 657.27

(i) Undisputed Trade teceivables - which have significant increase
i1 credit risk
(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables - eredit impaired

(iv) Disputed Teade receivables - considered pood - - + = p

(¥) Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase

304.21

in credit gisk . 134.63 95.79 69.35 4.25 18
i 1T ivables - credit 1 ired
(1) Disputed Trade rec credit impai . i 083 13.90 7377 128.60
(v) Unbilled 21322 - - i = 21322
Total 920117 156.70 139.15 32.27 74.01 1,303.30
Trade Receivables ageing as of 31st March 2021
Particulars 0 ding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 6 months - 1 year 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 Total
months years

(i) Undisputed Trade reccivables - considered gond _ 176.93 95.19 1443 202.49 3211 52114
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase n

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired = = = = = -
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good = L = = 2

(v) Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase 580.39
in_credit risk 145.49 73.16 21.84 313.98 25.92

(v1) Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired 5.56 32.07 29.79 8.33 183.56 250.31
(v) Unbilled 18252 - 2 g S 18252
Total 510.51 200.41 66.05 524.80 241.58 1,543.36

14 Cash & Cash Equivalent

Cash on hand - 0.02
Balances with Banks 431.63 18.60
831.63 18.62

15 Other Current Financial Assets

Interest accured on FD 0.31 0.90
Bank deposits # 420.34 424.99
License Fees Equalisation Asset 15.06 -
Other receivable - 0.43
e 2632

# Fixed Deposit of ¥ 413.00 Lakhs (P.Y. ¥ 413.00 Lakhs ) carmarked towards maintainance of DSRA as per
loan agreement and Fixed Deposit of Nil (P.Y.% 5 Lakhs ) 1s given as security for Bank gurantee.

16 Current Tax Assets (Net)

Advance Income Tax (Net of Provisions ) 154.32 182.54
154.32 182.54
Movement in Provision
At Start of the year 182.54 592.92
Charge for the year (61.45) (2.5
Excess / (Short) Provision of Income Tax for caclier year 2.47 (65.07)
Taxes (paid)/refund received (30.76) 342 81
At the end of the year 154.32 182.54
17 Other Current Assets
Advance to Vendors* 4.49 9.72
Prepaid Expenses H).69 43.45
45.18 53.17
— =

* Net of Provision for Expenses of £.24.34 Lakhs (PY: 367.32 Lakhs)




Blackwood Developers Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022

(R in Lakhs
Note No.|Particulars As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2022 2021
18 Equity Share Capital
Authorised
3,00,00,000 (P.Y: 3,00,00,000) Equity Shares of T 10/- each 3,000.00 3,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up Share Capital
1,87,31,675 (P.Y: 1,87,31,675) Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- cach fully paid up 1,873.17 1,873.17
1,873.17 1,873.17
a] Reconciliation of the Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Equity Shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,87,31,675 1,87,31,675
Shares Issued during the Year - -
Shares bought back during the Year - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the Year 1.87.31,675 1,87.31.675
b} Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% Shares in
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
the company (Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid) S pi
NG % of Holdings Number of shares| % of Holdings
shares
Big Apple Real Estate Private Limited 1,87,31,665 100 1,87,31,665 100
c] Details of Shares held by [Shares of 10 each fully pud] 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Number of % of Holdings | Number of shares| % of Holdings
shares
Holding Company 1,87,31,665 100 1,87,31,665 100

% change during| % change during
0,
Name of Promoter No of Shares % of total shares the year 2021-22 | the year 2020-21
i Apple Real Estate Private Limited 1,87.31,665 100 E
19 Other Equity

a) Instrument classified as equity( Refer Note No 19.1)
As per last Balance Sheet 1,120.00 1,120.00
Add: Issued during the year 1,050.00 -
Less: Repaid during the year = -
Closing Balance 2,170.00 1,120.00
b) Securities Premium Account
As per last Balance Sheet 1,856.00 1,856.00
Add: For the year - -
Closing Balance 1,856.00 1,856.00
c) Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
As per last Balance Sheet 13.00 12,78
Add:- Acturial gain / (loss) on Employee Benefit (Net) (0.28) 0.22
Closing Balance 12.72 13.00
d) Retained Earning
As per Last Balance Sheet (564.77) (415.39)
Add:- Profit / (Loss) for the Year 395.81 (149.38)
(Closing Balance (168.96) (564.7T)
‘Tatal Other Equity (a+b+et+d) 3,869.76 2,424.23

d] Terms and Rights of Equity Shareholders:

&) Shares held by promoters as at 31st March 2022

‘The Company has only one class of Equity Shares of face value Z.10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitiled to one vote per share Equity
share holders are also entiled to dividend as and when proposed by the Board of Directors and approved by the share holders in Annual General
Mecting. In the event of liquidation of the company. the holder of equity shares will be entiled to received remaining assests of the company, after
distribution of all preferencal amounts which shall be in proporation to the number of shares held by the share holders




Blackwood Developers Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022

(T in Lakhs)
Note No. |Particulars As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2022 2021
The Company had issued Unsecured Optionally Convertible Debentured (the"OCD") with a face value of .10/~ each at par The OCD's have tenure
19.1

19.2

20

20.1

20.2

of 10 yeats from the date of allotment. The company has an option to redeem the debentures at any time during the tenute of the OCD's. In case of
redemption, the premium amount should be as per the terms mentioned in the allotment .

(R in Lakhs)
Optionally Convertible Debentures issued to Amount|Period from Period to
Big Apple Real Estate Private Limited 1,000.00 |07-02-2017 05-02-2027
Big Apple Real Estate Private Limited 120.00 |31-03-2017 29-03-2027
Big Apple Real Estate Private Limited 1,050.00 [29-03-2022 26-03-2032

Description of nature and purpose of each reserve

Security Premium Account : Securities premium account represents premium received on shares issued;which can be utilised only in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act,2013 for specified purposes

Retained earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that the company has earned till date, less any transfers to General Reserve, dividends ot other
distributions paid to the shareholders.

Long Term Borrowings

Secured
Term loans From Financial Institutions 7,728.47 8,640.97
Less : Current Maturities of Long Tetm Botrowing (1,007.49) (883.13)

6,720.98 7,757.84

Term Loan of ¥ 7785.96 Lakhs (P.Y. ¥ 8708.47 Lakhs) Secured by Registered Mortgage of Shopping Mall and Multiplex known as Phoenix United
Mall,Bareilly and assignment of future tent reccivable of the company.

21

22

23

24

Maturity profile of Secured Term Loan are as set out below: (% in Lakhs)
Financial Year Amount|Financial Year Amount
2022-2023 1,017.50 |2027-2028 1471.02
2023-2024 1,094.25 |2028-2029 387.54
2024-2025 1,179.87
2025-2026 1,269.30
2026-2027 1,366.48
Other Non Current Financial Liabilities
Security Deposit from Licencees 33.93 117.04
33.93 117.04
Provision
Provision for Gratuity 6.16 3.80
Provision for Compensated Absences 7.06 4,37
13.22 8.17
Other Non Current Liabilities
Other Liabilities 4.38 13.97
4.38 13.97
Borrowings
Working Capital Loan* - 63.80
Loan and Advances from Holding Company - 39.20
Current matutities of long term debts 1,007.49 883.13
1,007.49 986.13

Working Capital facility are Secured by Registered Mortgage of Shopping Mall and Multiplex known as Phoenix United Mall,Bareilly and assignment of
*

future rent reccivable of the company.




Blackwood Developers Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022

( in Lakhs)
Note No. |Particulars As at 31st March, | As at 31st March,
2022 2021
25 Trade payables
Total outstanding dues to Micro and Small Enterprises # 293 1.70
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 121.82 62.79
124.75 64.49

26

27

28

The disclosure pursuant to the said Act under:

# There are no Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the company ows dues,
March, 2022. The above information regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has
basis of information available with the company. This has been relied upon by the Auditors.

a) Principal amount due to supplier under MSMED Act, 2006

been dertemined to the exten

for more than 45days during the year as at 31st March,2021 and 31st
t such parties have been identified on the

2.93 1.70
b) Interest acerued and due on the above amount, unpaid - -
c) Payment made beyond the appointed day during the vear - -
d) Interest paid - -
e) Interest due and payable for the period of delay - -
f) Interest remaining due and payable in succeeding year - -
Trade Payable Ageing as of 31st March 2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from Bill date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years Total
1) MSME 213 - . - 213
(i) Others 107.87 0.78 0.05 3.97 112.67
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME 0.80 - - - 0.80
(iv) Disputed dues - Others 3.60 1.83 0.90 276 9.15
Total 114.46 2.61 0.96 6.73 124.75
Trade Payable Ageing as of 31st March 2021
Particulars Outstanding for followi eriods from Bill date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2years 2 -3 years More than 3 years Total
(1) MSME 1.70 - - - 1.70
(i) Others 51.68 077 2.36 5.56 60.36
(i) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others 0.84 1.59 - - 243
Total 54,22 235 2.36 5.56 64.49
Other Current Financial Liability
Interest accrued but not due 3113 44.67
Security Deposits from Licencees 941.17 1,099.18
Payable for purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.16 0.16
972.46 144.01
Other Current Liabilities
Statutory Dues 28.75 29.84
Advance from cutomers 41.07 29.01
Others payable 74.26 182,12
144.08 240.96
Provisions
Provision for Gratuity 0.50 0.50
Provision for Compensated Absences (.86 0.31
1.36 0.81




BLACKWOOD DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statement for the Year Ended 31st Match, 2022

Note No. [PARTICULARS For the year ended

For the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
29 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Services
License Fee/ Rental Income 1,965.48 1,454.19
Other Service Charges 989.20 857.75
2,954.68 2,311.94
30 OTHER INCOME:
Interest income on assets measured at amortised cost
On Fixed Deposit 17.18 23.14
On ICD & other Interest - 26.33
On Income tax refund 6.81 18.25
23.99 67.72
31 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries & Wages 110.56 96.36
Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds 5.33 4.29
Staff Welfare 1.54 1.55
117.43 102.20
32 FINANCE COSTS:
Interest expense for financial liabilities at amortised cost 722.71 931.11
Other Borrowing Cost 24.58 10.00
747.29 941.11
33 OPERATION AND OTHER EXPENSES
Power & Fuel Expenses 439.14 241.14
Repair and Maintenance
Building 6.43 9.56
Machinery & Others 73.64 57.22
Insurance 44.61 46.05
Rates & Taxes 17.63 16.83
Legal and Professional Expenses 97.81 92.22
Security Charges 80.60 66.97
Advertisement and Sales Promotion Expenses 92.92 121.44
Audit Fees 3.00 3.30
Travelling & Coveyance Expenses 277 1.18
Parking Expenses 31.32 23.82
Manpower Charges 87.45 78.10
Allowance for expected credit loss 27.06 95.78
Rebates & Settlement 241.18 30.28
Other Miscellaneous Expenses 18.74 30.96
1,264.30 914.84
Payments to Auditors
As Auditor:
Audit Fees 2.50 2.80
Tax Audit Fees 0.50 0.40
Certification Charges - 0.10
Total 3.00 3.30




[PLACEWOOD DEVELOFERS PRIVATE LIMITED
MNotes to Financial Statements for vear ended 31st March, 2022
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®in L1khn'||

Expenscs recognised for Defined benefits plan:

using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

N Particulare 2021-2 2020-21
No.
M |Taxation
A Statement of Profit or Loss
1 Income Tax
In respect of the current year 6145 250
In respect of prior vears (24T 65.07
SH.9H 671.57
2 Deferred Tax expenses/ (benefits):
In respect of the cucrent year (11234 -
Total Income tax Expenses (1 + 2) (53.37) 67.57
B I tax ised in Other C hensive I
Deferred tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 0.10 -
0.10 -
€ Reconciliation of Current Tax expenses:
Profit before tax 34245 (81.81)
Applicable Tax Rate 26.00%% 25,168%
Computed tax expenses 89.00 (20.59)
Addidonal allowances for tax purpose (179.42) (157.8%
Expenses not allowed for tax purposes 156.26 185.54
Beought forward losses set off (63.84) (7.06)
Additional Tax payable due to MAT provisions G145 250
61.45 2.50 |
D D i Tax Rec ised in of profit and Loss relates to the following:
Property,Plant and Equipement 16.20 -
E llowable on basis 379 L
Provision for loss allowance 9246 -
112 44 -
S vl
E  Reconciliation of Deferred Tax (Liabilites) / Asset net:
Opening balance as on 1st April - B
Tax expenses / (income) during the year 112,34 -
Tax on other comprehensive income 0.10 -
Closing balance as on 31st March 112.44 -
35 |Emplovees Benefits:
Expensecs recognised for Defined contribution plan:
202122 2020-21
Company's Contribution to Provident Fund 3.29 343
Company's Contribution to Emplovyees State Insurance 0.14 13,66
343 17.10

The company provides gratuity benefit to its employces which are 1 defined benefit plan, The present value of obligations is determined based on actuarial valuation

Gratuity (Funded
2021-22 2020-21
1 |Change in Defined Benefit Obligation during the year
Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year 7.97 8.44
Interest Cost 0.66 0.66
Current Service Cost 1.67 1.67
1*ast Secvice Cost - -
Actuirial (gain)/loss on Defined Benefit Obligation 0.33 (0,38}
Benofits Paid (0.35) (242}
| {Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the vear 10.29 7.97
2 |Change in fair value of Plan Assets during the year
Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year 3.67 575
Expected Return on plan assets 0.26 0.39
Contribution 0.08 0.10
Benefits paid ducing the year (0.35) (242
Actuarial (gain)/loss on Plan Asset (0.05) (0.15)
Fair value of Plan Asscts at the end of the vear 3.62 3.67
3 |A to be ized in Bal. sheet:
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 10.29 7.97
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the year 3.62 367
| |Amount recognired in Balance sheet 6,66 4.30
4 [Current / Non - current bifurcation:
Current benefit obligation 0.50 0.50
Non - current benefir oblistion 616 3.80
5 |E: ised in the of Fi ial position for the year
Current Service Cost 1.67 1.67
[nterest cost on obligation 0.66 0.66
Expected Return on plan assets (0.26) (0.39)
Past Service Cost = -
Actuaral (zain)/losses - -
Expense ized in the statement of Profit & Loss account 207 1.94
6 IR ised in Other C hensive i for the year
Remeasurement due to:
Effect of change in financial assumptions 0.19 0.30)
Effect of change in demographic assumptions (0.02) 3
Effect of experience adjustments 0.16 007
Return on plan of assets( excluding interest) 0.05 015
Net Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized for the-géar- 0.38 (ﬂ.g\u




BLACEWOOD DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for year ended 31st March, 2022

(% in Lakhs)
Note .
No. Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
7 |Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Within the next 12 months 0.93 0.32
Between 2 to 5 years 4.07 1.71
Between 5 to 10 years 4.43 251
8 |Acturial assumptions used for estimating defined benefit obligations
Discount Rate 7.40% 7.00%
0% for the tirst year, 5%
Salary Escalation Rate 7.00%|for the next year & 7%
therafrer
Expected Rate of Return on Assets 7.40% 7.00%
Mortality Rate IALM (2012-14) IATM (2012-14)
Ultimate Ultimate

Attrition/ Withdrawal Rate 10% 5%
The weighted average duration of plan 12.68 years 12.36 years
No. of Employees 15.00 17.00|
Average Age 35.14 35.31
Total Salary 3.17 3.39
Average Salary 0.21 0.20
Average Service 5.84 4.80
Accrued Benefit 10.99 8.77
Actuarial Liability 10.29 7.97

Notes:
1 dlary escalation rate 15 arxived atter taking INto account regular increaments, price NTlANoN and Promotion and other relevant Iactors such as supply and demand tn

employment market.
2 Discount rate is based on prevailing matket yields of Indian Government Secutities as at balance sheet date for estimated term of obligations.
3 Attrition rate/ withdrawal rate is based on Company's policy towards retention of employees, historical data and industry outlook.
4 Expected contribution to defined benefit plans for the financial year 2022-23 is % 0.50 Lakhs
5 The above information is certified by actuary.

9 Sensitivity analysis:

igntions at the end of the vear:

Change in Effect on Gratuity obligation
assumption 2021-22 2020-21
Discount rate +1% (0.73) (0.90)
-1% 0.84 1.07
Salary Escalation rate +1% 0.74 0.88
1% (0.72) (0.83)
Attrition Rate +1% 0.00 0.02
-1% (0.01) (0.01)
These gratuity plan typically expose to the company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Investment Risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds. For other defined benefit plans, the discount rate is determined by reference to market yield at the end of reporting period on high quality
corporate bonds when there is a deep market for such bonds; if the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

Interest risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan debt investments.
Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their
employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s Liability.

Salary risk
The present value of the defined plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants
will increase the plan’s liability.

Other Long Term Benefit Plan - Compensated Absences

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Present value of unfunded obligations 7.92 4.68
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 3.66 0.52

In Other comprehensive income
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss - Plan liabilities - -
Actugrial (Gain) / Loss - Return On Plan Assets = =
Net (Income)/ Expense For the period Recognized in OCI -
Discount rate (per annum) 7.40% _  7.00%

0% for the first year,
5% for the next year &
7.00% 7% therafter

Salary escalation rate (per annum)

/25000

¢

7,




BIACRWOOD DEVELOPFERS PRIVATE LIMI
Nuotes to Financial Statements for vear ended 3tat March, 2022
{% e Lahbie]
Note Partienhs
n, anficylry 2021-22 2020-2L
*h 11}
36 |Relared Diselosure:
Tn scenmdais with the sequiremenls of 1IN AS 24, an relited party disclyssnes, name of the related party, related party reladonshi and Ji
Lialarscen fnicTufing comsmitmints whees cantiol exity and witl wham tramsctions have taken place during reported pedods, are:
2} Rekited Yarty with whem e have been takeon place wnd refatinnahi
Nume of the party fationnii)
T [T Phoeniz Mills Limbted Tl company
2 |Big Apple Real Estate Private Limited Huslding any
3 | Masket Clty Resousces Peivate Limiled mm:m.,
4 | Pallaiven Constructiins Private Limited Fellrr subrelchissy
5 | Doestinty Retail Mall Dewelopers Mrivate Limited
& | Ul Develogrs Privite Lisshed
7. | Shotilsie Suenn
by T b i the vear: {2 i Lakha}
B Name of Helated purtice
Sr
. Dig Apple Real Market Cis Palladium Denthny Reail Upal
N N £ ig App ty tiny pa .
° Sl The Phoenic Mils | FstatePrivate | R Privare | G fona Drivate |Mall Develapers| Developers | K Mensgeral| - Toul
Limited Limited Limited Limited Private Limpted | Private Limited
1 |Optisnslly Convertible Debentures T 1a%m b ' ¥ . ¥ 1.030.00
i L) (5] (o] 2] [} [} 5]
i Trponne [y cemmpny oa beRall of 20617 = E T 3 N - 06,17
nthen M4% [ A (& (5] {4 (5] (.43
1,..:,.....“““:"—4““ o § ey . g i x i z Z =
ey MR . | (8] 5] [y (oo {4
4 |Inier Corprieate Depeits Taken : = = 400.00 »
i 5 5 I ) I t
5 [Legul & Poof Pes i rt Servi = 3 = = = =
%(Besiners Suppost Senices) o) t ) I (A )
6 |Resmuneestion paid : ' = X J = 47
sl [ 1 (A 2 3 TA)
7 |Interst Eapessses on ICD E - B - 707 =
[} o 5} (3] 5]
8 |lntesest lacame wn ICD " = = 3 = 3
(4 £ i {4 ] 235
% |bnter Comparite Deposits Repaid o i i wmu:tll ‘u BB 10
1o |Lasars nmd Achvmisezs [[E] 30 s - = - - 0.2
13 2] 3] : (3] 6] ]
11 |Prrchime of Material = g - * = 249 ® 1249
{4 oY 5] 2] 8] 1= [ {)
ol Closing Dalénce an on et March, 2002
- Name of Related pariies
ul . s . . .
No Partieulars ]!JZII‘Apple. Real _ Market Clty . Palladium Dextiny Retail Upal Tousl
. The Phoenix Mills u.xe !'nv-x: e Private Eio Private M{ll m"'f"‘!"’“ ]?evcln!'ictl
ioltod Limited Limited Limited Private Limited | Privatc Limited
1 [Optioaslly Comverdde Debentires - 2, I7000 . : = - SN
{4 {1130 068 1 5] £ B {1, 120000
2 |Umecsrd Loan - * . = v = -
2] (s [ =) 3 £ (9.
3 |Ontlueen payable E - . = = 5 [TD
5] ) I5) (083 il 5] rhan
4 [Trade payable % . - - 030 . [0
) [5) {4 £ 5 0.30) [ 03
5 |Orher sexivables * - - . . “ .
43| 2] 5] (&l £ 8] _(nan]

*Heecivable Fmen The Phoenix Mills |Limited of Ra 1.
Nnte : - Figurca in brackets represents previous yeac's figurce.,

1 The transaciions with rclaied partics are made on Leoms equivalent lo those that prevail in amm’s kength transactions.

2 Review of outstanding balances is undertaken each financial year through cxamining the financial position of the related party and the market in which related party operates. These balances are unsecured and their setlement occurs through
Banking channcl.

37 |Scgment reporting:

The Commpiiis b in the Basisiess uf setthng- s and ope st of Mall. Considering the nature of the i
Lusdian Aceimmitiig Standand (11913 ASj108 ~Seginent Reparting’
Foxeeutice Directar (the'Chicf Operutional (ecivian Msker s1 defined in INDAS108 — Operating Segments) twisira the operating results of the entity's business for the purpose of making decisians sbout resource allocation and performance

#sarnament.

s Lisslress anul operations, there i o separate reportable segments {isineas and/or geographical) in acconlarier with the requi of|

The revenuct from fransactions with a single customer does not amount 1o 10 per ¢ent or more of an entity’s revenues. For brosd categeory of services rendered refer nate na 29

38 1"Jmlilnz !trl-lt:ns

FUIEY 203031
) Nt pacti afice Lax as pee Statement of Profit and Loss sttributable 10 Equiry Shuchaldes (2 in Lakhs) 39581 (147,30
)| Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominstor for caleulating EI'S 1.87,31,675 187 3LET5
i) | Weiglstesl Avemaige number of equity shares used as denominator for calculating DEPS 300,17,966 LMIINTS
in | Batic Esmings per share (7) 211 (.41
[uted Famings pee sl 013 [t
1050

ings per share is name a1 Dasic Hamingy per shaes

3 |Contingent Liabilities

+. Outstanding Guarantces given by bank: 2 5.00 lskhs (P.Y. 2 5.00 lakhs)

b, Disped ncame Ts Peaby isbility /s ST1(1)(e) of 2 149 lakhs (P.Y. X 14.92 lakbe) for AY 2013-14 a3 the maites i in appeal before Comumissioncs of Income Tax (Appeals) - Delhi.
¢ [ilguuted Service Tax Hability sinountivy to N (P. Y. 2. 3873 lakh) a3 the matter s in appeal before CESTAT - Allshabad

1. Etimatesd smonnt of cunteacts restialnbng o be executed o capital Account and not provided for in the accounts is Nil (PY. Rs.3.78lakhs)

. The above litigation in Para (b) & (c) is not expexied (o have any material adverse impact on the financial position of the company.

40 | Fair Valoe of Finuncial asscts and Liabilitice:
St Gt ko s he eompasison by €lars of carrying smounts and [sir vale of Company's financial imstsusmunits that are reognised in the financis! aternents

(Fin Lakha)
Particulars As at Vst March, 2022 As at Biarel
] Vi
Catrving Value Currving Value

Financial ssscta donignated st amoiiize cost
Trahe Heswivaliles 267,71 967.71 1,23481 1,23482
Cash s Cash Byuivalenta 831,63 831.63 1862 1862
(e financisl dsscty 4418 44,18 42632 42632

Tl .52 22405 L7878 147976 |
Hil 1al liabilities devi d at ised cost
Bommwings 7,72846 7,72846 8,74397 8,743.97
Trade payalikes and others 12475 124.75 6449 6449
Ohther financil LisbiliGes 1,006.38 1,006 38 1,261,05 1261.05

Total 0.6 RATI0 10,060,510 A

Fair valistion technigues:

Tl Compasyy maintuine policics and procedures 1o value financial assets o¢ Grancial lisbilitcs using the best and most relevant data available.

The fullowing methosds sl assumptions were used (o estimate the fair values

Fair vatue of fisuancial sswets and lisbilities (except long term bomrowings) are carricd st amoriised cost is not materially different from il's carrving cont duc fo short tean malunitics
Fair value of Long Term Borrowing is calculated on discounted cashllow

-

4l N Bl

ave und Jcenie lgllrnlrﬂll‘lw genenlly for s pend oﬂ % 5 years, The leems also provide for escalation of License fees on & pegodical basis, Generally, the company hus u right (0 terminate these agreements by giving mivance natice s
stipulsted] therein.

Future minimum License Fees receivable under Leave and License sgreement for non-cxired lock in period as at 31" March 2022 are as follows:

{Lin Lal

After onc year but nat
more than five years

As on Jat Masch 2022 43044 = 134.65 - 500
As on 31as Surch 2031 A33 0t 350.91 - 48179

Licensers during the year is 2 498.57Lakhs (P.Y. T 569 66Lakhs)

Particulars Within ime year Morc thaa five years |Total

Gt License Foes comprising of Revenue Share income (computed a1 % g




BLACKWOOD DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for year ended 31st March, 2022

(% in Lakhs)

Note
No.

Particulars

12

Financial risk Management:

The Company's activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. This note explains the sources of risks which the entity is exposed to and how it mitigates that
nsk.

® Market risk:
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of
risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and
borrowings and investments in securities.
Foreign currency risk
The Company is not exposed to any foreign exchange risk as at the respective reporting dates.

Interest rate risk

IFluctuation in fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument because of changes in market interest rates gives rise to interest rate risk. Almost 100% of the company’s
borrowings are linked to BR + Margin. Margin may be agreed with the bank from time to time. With all other variables held constant, the following table demonstrates the
impact of change in interest rate on borrowing cost on floating rate portion of loans.

Increase/ (decrease) in Interest cost of Long term borrowings for the year:

(T in Lakhs
Change in Effect on Profit/(Loss) betore
Rate of tax
2021-22 2020-21
+1%0/-1% T17.86 87.08

Commodity and Other price risk
"The Company is not exposed to the commodity and other price risk.

o Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company that a customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails to meet its obligations. The Company is exposed to ctedit
risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, mutval funds and financial institutions and other
financial instraments.

Trade and other recivables:

The Company extends credit to customers in normal course of business. The Company considers factors such as credit track record in the market and past dealings for
extension of credit to customers. To manage credit risk, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of the customer, taking into account the financial condition,
current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and aging of accounts receivables. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored to make an
assessment of recoverability. Receivables are provided as doubtful / written off, when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, Where receivables have been provided /
written off, the Company continues regular followup , engage with the customers, legal options / any other remedies available with the objective of recovering these
outstandings.

"I'ne Company is not exposed to concentration of credit risk to any one single customer since services are provided to vast specturm and hence, the concentration of risk with
respect to trade receivables is low. The Company also takes security deposits, advances , post dated cheques etc from its customers, which mitigate the credit risk to an extent.

Cash and cash equivalents an other investments

The Company is exposed to counter party risk relating to medium term deposits with banks and investment in mutual funds. The Company considers factors such as track
record, size of the institution, market reputation and service standards to select the banks with which balaaces and deposits are maintained. Generally, the balances are
raintained with the institutions with which the Company has also availed borrowings. The Company does not maintain significant cash and deposit balances other than those
required for its day to day operations.

Exposure to credit risk
The gross carrying amount of financial assets, net of impairment losses recognised represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31st
March,2022 and 31st March, 2021 is as follows:

® in Lakhs)
Asat Asat
31/03/2022 31/03/2021
Financial assets for which loss allowances is measured using 12 months Expected Credit Losses (ECL):
(Cash and cash equivalents 831.63 18.62
Other financial assets 444.18 426.32

Financial assets for which loss allowances is measured using Life time Expected Credit Losses (ECL):
‘I'rade receivables 967.71 1,234.81
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BLACKWOOD DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED
MNaotes 1o Finunciol Statements for year ended 31st March, 2022

Life time Expeeted evedit loss for Treade receivables under srmplified approch (2 in Lakhg)

i B Past Due

f R ! Total

Aging of Trade Receivables 90 davs | 90-160 dovs] 180 -360 days over 360 davs °
As at 31st March, 2022
Gross Carrying Amount 510.95 200.24 14290 235.98 1,090.08
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance provision) 93.22 50.62 50.64 14113 335.60
Net Carrying Amount 417.73 149.63 92.26 94.85 754.47
As at 318t March, 2021
Gross Carrying Amount 629.60 199.71 146.14 385.40 1,360.84
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance provision) 345 441 741 293.58 308.54
Met Carrying Amount 626.15 195.60 138.73 91.82 1,052.30
Reconciliation of Changes in the life time exp: d credit loss all 2021-22 2020-21
Loss allowance on 1 April, 308.54 221.79
Provided during the vear 27.06 95.78
Reversal during the year - 9.03)
loss allowance on 31st March, 335.60 308.54
Cirsliand Cash equivalent, other I Loans an other financial asscts are neithec past due nor impaired. Management is of view that these financial assets arc considered

good and 12 months ECL is not provided.

¢ Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses.
The Company’s objective 15 to at all imes maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet 1ts cash and collateral requirements. The Company relics on 4 mix of borrowings, capital

mfusion and excess operating cash flows to meet its needs for funds. The current borrowings are sufficient to meet its short to medium term exp needs. Manag
manitors the Company's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

(¥ in Lakhe
As at 31st March, 2022
Particulars Carrving Amount | On Demand Lesathan 1 Yr |1-5yrs =5 years Total
Borcowings 7,728.46 - 1,007.49 6,340.92 380.05 7,728.46
Other Financial Liabilities 1,006.38 - 97246 33.93 - 1,006.38
‘Trade and other payables 12475 - 12475 - - 124.75
As at 31st March, 2021
Particulars Carrying Amount |On Demand Lessthan1¥r  [1-5vrs >5 years Total
Borowings 8,743.97 103.00 883.13 5.830.89 1.926.95 8,743.97
Other Financial Liabilities 1,261.05 - 1.144.01 117.04 - 1,261.05
Trade and other payables (449 - 64,49 - - 64.49
Capital management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital 2 i to maximize the sharcholder value. The Company’s primary objective when managing capital 1s to ensure that it

ainting an cfficient capital structure and healthy capital ratios and safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem i order to support its business and provide
masimum cetuens for sharcholders. The Company also proposes to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. No changes weee made in the objectives,
policics or processes during the year ended 31st March 2022 and 31st March 2021.

For the purpase of the Company’s capital £ capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other cquity reserves. Net debt includes, interest bearing loans and
borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and short term deposits.
As At As At
Pariculars 31st March, 2022  31st March, 2021
Loans and Borrowings 7,728.46 8,743.97
Less: Cash and cash cquivalents + Bank Deposits 1251.97 443.61
Net Debt 6,476.49 8,300.37
“Toml Capital 5,742.93 4,297.40
Capital+Net Debt 12,219.42 12,591.77
Geanng Ratio 53.00% 65.89%
Additional information as required under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year:
(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21] Purpose
i) No Investment is made in Body Corporate. . -
1) No Investmen v Cormpo General
ii) Loan given by the Company to Body Corporate or person during the year Corporate
[ai Raj lspat Limited - 100.00 Purpose
iii) No Guarantee is given by the Company, = -
Reclassification: Based on the pronouncements/clarifications by the professional bodies/institutions and general acc ing practice followed by Industry, the Company has

during the year reclassified the following wems of balance sheer

Ducing the Year, the Company has rechssificd Land and Building pertaining to retail licensing opesations from Propecty Plant and Equipment to Investment Peopeety as
Company believes that sevised presenmton provides mformation that is more relevant to the users of financial statements and is more appropriste consideeing general
accounting practices and Companies operatinns. The previous penod figures have been segrouped to incorporate the above reclissification, Further, the Company has assessed
thie wnpact of such reelassification on its Anancial statements for the year ended 315t March, 2021, Theee i no impact of the satd reclassification an the profits in the Statement
of Peofit and Loss for the previous peeind, cash fow statements for the previous period and the retained earuings as at the beginning of the previous period. Fad this

reclassification been reflected m the above ioned fi | the impact would have been as follows:
As at 31st March, 2021 As at st April, 2020
= As Originally = . As Originally = P
" ReclacsiF Recl Recl R

Particulars Note No. T ified| Rerasied
PP (1] 12,636.42 (1113001} 150641 13.133.62 (11,2857 184790
Investment
Property 7 = 11.130.01 1113001 = 11.285.72 11.285.72




BLACKWOOD DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for vear ended 31st March, 2022
I:;:Ae Particulars
46 [Additional regulatory information required by Sehedule I11
Detils of benami property held -
i)| M proceedings have been mitiated on or are pending aganst the company for holding benanu properny under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made
thereunder.
ii)| Borrowing secured against current assets
Company g not obligted to fle Quartery return/statements with Kotak Mahindra Investment Limited, henee reporting Quarterly return/statements reconciliaton with books of accounts 1s not
apphcable
iii) | Wilful defaulter
Company have not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial mstitution or government or any government authority:
iv) | Relationship with struck off companies
The company has no transactions with the comnanics struck off under Companies Act. 20113 or Companies Act. 1936,
v)| Compliance with number of layers of companies
The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companices Acet, 2013
vi)| Compliance with approved sch (s) of arrang
The company has not entered into any scheme of acmngement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year,
vii)|Utilisativn of borrowed funds and share premium
The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ivs), meluding foreign entinies (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Inteemediary shall:
ao directly or indircctly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ulimate Beneficiaries) or
b provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries
The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Pacty) with the understanding (whether recorded in wrinng or otherwise) that the
company shall:
a directdy or indircctly lend or investn other petsons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Benceficiaries) or
b, provide any guarntee, sccurity or the like on behalf of the ulimate beneficiaries
viii)|Undisclosed income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Aet, 1961, that has not been recorded m the books of
aceount.
ix) | Details of erypto currency or virtual currency
The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.
x)|Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property
The company has not cevalued ite propecy, plant and cq'_m[_-mml {including nght-of-use assers) or mtangible assets or both duning the current or previows year.
47 |Rato N Current Period | Previous Period % Variance Reason for variance
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 108 0.79 37.62% Duc ro Increase in Bank Balances OD Facilines not
. - utilized
Detb-Equity Ratio Total Debt Total Shareholder's 1.35 2.03 -33.86"% Due to Repayment of Loans
Fquin
Debt Service Coverage Ratio Eaoung available | Debt Service 0.94 138 -31.97% Duc to Incsase in Net Income
for debt service
Return on Equity Ratio Net Profitafter | Avemge 7.88%, =3.427 -330.76%% Due to Profitn Current Year
[N Sharcholders Equity
Trade Receivables umover mtio | Credit Sales Avenge Trade 268 248 BT
Receivables
Trade payables urnover ratio Net Credit Average Trade 371 295 2572% Duc to Increase in Expenses
Posechase Pavahle
Net capital tumover mtio Net Sales Average Working (17.56) (594 195.85"n Due to Increase in working capital
Capital
Net profit ratio Net Profit afrer | Net sales 13,40 ~6.46" 0 -317.33" Due to Prohit in Current Year
1A
Retum on Capital Employed Earning before | Capital Employed 43.70%% H96". 165"
Interest and Tax
Return on Investment Interest on Fixed | Average 403% 345% -23.93% Duc to teduction in FD intesest
Deposits Investment in Fixed
Denosits
Below mtios are not apphcable:
a Inventory Tumover mtio
48 | Tmade recervables and trade payables are subject to confiemation and reconciliation, 1f any, The same is not expected to have any matenal impact on the fimancial statements
49 | The previous year {igures have been tegrouped, reworked, rearranged and reclassified, whenever necessary and are to be read in relation to the amounts and other disclosures relating to the current

vear.
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